ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COVW TTEE
April 13, 2009

1:37 p.m
VEVMBERS PRESENT
Senator Hollis French, Chair
Senator Bill Wel echowski, Vice Chair
Senat or Gene Therri aul t
MEVMBERS ABSENT
Senator Lesil MQ@iire
COW TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RMATI ON HEARI NG

At torney Cener al

WAYNE ANTHONY ROSS - Anchorage
- NAME ADVANCED

COWM TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO 49(JUD) AM

"An Act relating to the prohibition of the exercise of the power

of emnent donmain against a recreational structure for the

pur poses of developing a recreational facility or project.”
SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

SENATE BILL NO 156

"An Act relating to the Interstate Conpact for Juveniles;

relating to the State Council for Interstate Adult and Juvenile

O fender Supervision; anending Rules 4 and 24(b), Al aska Rules

of Civil Procedure; and providing for an effective date."
SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

SENATE BILL NO 54
"An Act making sales of and offers to sell <certain energy
resources by a refiner at prices that are exorbitant or
excessive an unlawful act or practice under the Al aska Unfair
Trade Practices and Consunmer Protection Act."

MOVED CSSB 54(JUD) OUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 54

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- April 13, 2009



SHORT TI TLE: PRI CE GOUG NG | NVOLVI NG ENERGY RESOURCES
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) W ELECHOWSKI, ELLI'S, FRENCH

01/ 21/ 09 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 16/ 09

01/21/09 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

01/ 21/ 09 (S) ENE, RES, JUD

02/ 12/ 09 (S) ENE AT 11: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 12/ 09 (S) Heard & Held

02/ 12/ 09 (S) M NUTE( ENE)

03/ 13/ 09 (S) ENE AT 11: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 13/ 09 (S Moved CSSB 54(ENE) Qut of Conmittee
03/ 13/ 09 (S) M NUTE( ENE)

03/ 16/ 09 (S) ENE RPT CS 1DP 3NR SAME TI TLE

03/ 16/ 09 (S) DP: W ELECHOWSKI

03/ 16/ 09 (S) NR. MCGUI RE, KOOKESH, STEDVAN

03/ 16/ 09 (S FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER JUD

03/ 18/ 09 (S) RES AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 18/ 09 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 18/ 09 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 27/ 09 (S) RES AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 27/ 09 (S) Moved CSSB 54(RES) Qut of Conmittee
03/ 27/ 09 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 30/ 09 (S) RES RPT CS 2DP 2NR 1AM NEW TI TLE
03/ 30/ 09 (S) DP: W ELECHOWSKI , FRENCH

03/ 30/ 09 (S) NR: MCGUI RE, STEVENS

03/ 30/ 09 (S) AM  HUGA NS

04/ 03/ 09 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

04/ 03/ 09 (S EM NENT DOVAI N: RECREATI ONAL STRUCTURES
04/ 10/ 09 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

04/ 10/ 09 (S) Heard & Held

04/ 10/ 09 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

W TNESS REG STER

WAYNE ANTHONY ROSS, Attorney Ceneral Appointee

Anchor age, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as Appointee to the position of
Attorney Ceneral.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:37:52 PM

CHAIR HOLLIS FRENCH <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:37 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Wel echowski, Therriault and French.

Confirmation - Wayne Anthony Ross - Attorney Ceneral

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- April 13, 2009



1: 38: 00 PM

CHAIR FRENCH announced the continuation of the confirmation
hearing for Wwyne Anthony Ross to the position of Attorney
CGeneral for the State of Al aska. He expl ained that he would pose
gquestions on a nunber of topics, but he didn't intend to repl ow
any ground that had been covered in this conmttee’ s previous
hearing or by the House Judiciary Comm ttee.

CHAI R FRENCH asked M. Ross what years he put his name forward
to be a judge.

WAYNE ANTHONY ROSS, Appointee, Attorney GCeneral, replied it was
probably three or four years ago; once for a position on the
state suprenme court and once for the court of appeals.

CHAIR FRENCH asked him to comment on the overall ratings he
received in the two bar polls. He noted that one was a 2.9 and
the other was a 2.8, which is just short of acceptable.

1:40: 45 PM

MR. ROSS related that he was told that his application generated
t he highest nunber of positive coments and the highest nunber
of negative comments of any applicant. He said he doesn’t know
what that neans, but he's practiced law for 40 years and he
wasn’'t there to win a popularity contest. He was there to
represent his clients. Wen you take public positions on issues
the people who disagree with you renenber that, he said. |’m not
surprised, he added.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if [Alaska Suprenme Court Justice] Robert
Eastaugh is a conservative.

MR. RCSS replied he though so when they first net many years
ago. “Some of his decisions - | wuldn't think that he 1is
anynore,” he added.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if [fornmer Alaska Suprenme Court Justice]
Dani el A. Mbore was a conservati ve.

MR. ROCSS replied, “I thought he was.”
1:42: 38 PM
CHAIR FRENCH said you wote a letter in 1993 to the “Bar Rag”

and referred to honobsexuals as degenerates. He asked, “Do you
still hue to that view M. Ross? Are honobsexual s degener at es?”

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- April 13, 2009



MR. ROCSS repli ed:
My job is to be the Attorney General for the State of

Alaska and represent al | Al askans. My  personal
opinions in that regard have no place ...and | decline
to state nmy opinion. | represent all Alaskans. Years
ago | didn't represent all Alaskans. There's a

di fference.

CHAIR FRENCH said this is an opportunity to disavow that view
and asked if he is declining the opportunity.

MR. ROCSS repli ed:

| represent all Alaskans and | intend to represent al
Al askans. My personal opinion nmeans nothing. | think |
said last week that | don’t like linma beans and if |
represented the United Vegetable G owers, | probably
wouldn’t conme out and say | don't like lim beans
because | have clients. | have a client that’s all the
peopl e of the state of Alaska and that’s who |’ m going
to be representing. It doesn’'t mtter what their
sexual orientation is.

1:44:00 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if it’s appropriate for an attorney
general to refer to a group of people as degenerates or immoral.

MR. RCSS replied, “No, that’s why | have the attorney general’s
hat on. No | don’t.”

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if he still adheres to the statenent
he made years ago when he said honpbsexuals were degenerates and
i nor al .

MR. RCSS replied, “1I was not attorney general at that tine.”

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said, “That’'s not the question |I asked you
| just asked you a sinple question whether or not you still
adhere to that position.”

MR. ROCSS repli ed:
| thought | answered that wth Senator French. MW
answer was it's not appropriate for the attorney
general to |abel Al askans one way or another unless
they’re crimnals. And I'm not going to answer that
question. | represent all Al askans.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- April 13, 2009



SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said, “I'm asking if you still adhere to
that position.”

1:44:52 PM
MR. ROSS responded that he took the oath as attorney general and
he isn't going to say what his personal opinions are.

SENATOR W ELECHONSKI asked if he is refusing to answer the
guesti on.

MR. ROSS replied that’s correct, but it doesn’'t mean we can’'t be
friends.

SENATOR WELECHOASKI replied it doesn’'t nean that, but 1|'m
trying to evaluate your qualifications for the position. “Wen
you call a group of people degenerates, |I'm curious to know
whet her you still adhere to that viewpoint. And by vyour
reluctance to answer the question | take it that’s a yes.”

MR. ROSS responded you can take it however you want but | took
an oath that says | represent all Al askans and that’s what |
intend to do.

1:45: 32 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT said if as attorney general he would take
steps to protect the legal or constitutional rights of gays and
| esbi ans as Al aska citizens.

MR. ROSS replied he absol utely woul d.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if he would take steps to uphold the
rights of a group of people he considers to be degenerates and
i mor al .

MR. ROSS said, “Absolutely.”

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if he's telling the conmttee that as
attorney general he would defend a group of people he considers
to be degenerates.

MR ROSS replied, “If the law gives certain people rights,
that’s nmy job.”

1:46: 29 PM

CHAI R FRENCH hi ghlighted the 2/10/09 letter that M. Ross wote
and sent to all Senate nenbers in response to the Senate passing
a contenpt resolution regarding the wtnesses who did not

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- April 13, 2009



respond when they were subpoenaed. He asked M. Ross if he had a
copy of the letter.

MR. ROSS said yes he did have a copy. He conti nued:
You did get the letter - |I'm glad that you got it
because | never got a response to it. So I'm glad to
see that you got it and I’ m happy to discuss it.

CHAIR FRENCH asked M. Ross to elaborate on the statenent he
made in paragraph two of his 2/10/09 letter. He read:
But sone legislators chose to hire Steve Branchfl ower
to handle that investigation and, as you are aware,
[ speaking to all the nenbers of the Senate] he
subpoenaed a nunber of state enployees to give
testimony on the issue.

MR, ROSS replied, “No, | think that’'s fairly clear. That’'s ny
under st andi ng of what took place.”

CHAIR FRENCH asked if he is aware of the error in that sentence.
MR. RCSS sai d no.

CHAI R FRENCH asked, “You are not aware that M. Branchflower did
not have subpoena powers?”

MR. ROSS repli ed:
Yes, but he acted through the Ilegislature in ny
opi nion, and he wanted people to come — sure. That’'s a
wordsm th there. Renenber, the only information | have
is what | read in the paper so if there's errors you
may have to attribute it to the papers.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if he represented a client in this matter.

MR. ROSS replied he did.

CHAIR FRENCH asked, “You did not attend the Senate Judiciary
Comm ttee hearings when the subpoenas were issued?”

MR. ROSS replied he did not.
CHAI R FRENCH asked, “You did not follow that matter cl osely?”

MR. ROSS replied, “No, | heard about it after that whole thing
took place — | got involved |ater.”

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- April 13, 2009



CHAIR FRENCH asked if it was an intentional error to suggest
that M. Branchfl ower subpoenaed anybody.

MR. ROCSS repli ed:

| don’t know that it’s intentionally an error at all
.As | understand it, the subpoena cane out and the
peopl e were supposed to conme talk to M. Branchfl ower.
If they were supposed to appear in front of this
commttee, that's sonething else again. But if there
was an error, you got the letter on the tenth of
February 2009; it’s now the thirteenth of April. You
had over 60 days to correct that error on nmy part. You
didn’t bother even to answer, so it’s a little tough
to conme after nme in the mddle of a hearing for
confirmation when you could have corrected ny errors a
| ong tinme ago.

1:49: 36 PM

CHAI R FRENCH responded, “lI guess | see it differently. | didn't
ask for this letter. You sent it to all the nenbers of the
Senate. You didn't address it to me sir. Did you?”

MR. RCSS replied, “I believe the original letter came directly
to you and | asked you to distribute it to all the nenbers of
the Senate and your office refused.”

CHAI R FRENCH asked, “Yes or no, is nmy nane on this letter?”

MR. ROSS replied, “I think it says ‘Senator.’ Your nane is not
specifically on that letter. Wether your nanme is on another
copy of the letter I don’'t know, but it’s not on this copy.”

1: 50: 02 PM
CHAI R FRENCH asked if he is aware of the error in the follow ng
sentence that’s at the bottom of page 2:

The Senate should not have ordered and paid for an

i nvestigation by outside counsel for what appeared to

be political purposes.

MR. ROSS said no, but I'mwilling to be educated.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if he is aware that the Senate did not begin
t he investigation.

MR ROSS replied | didn’t say the Senate began the
i nvestigation.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- April 13, 2009



CHAI R FRENCH asked if he's aware that the Senate neither ordered
nor paid for an investigation.

VR. ROSS replied, “It’s ny understanding that that you
appropriated $100,000 for an investigation and you directed M.
Branchflower to do it.”

CHAIR FRENCH said that is your second error; it was the
Legi sl ative Council t hat ordered the investigation. That
commttee i s conposed of nenbers from both bodies.

MR ROCSS said, “Good.”

1:51: 54 PM

CHAI R FRENCH st at ed:
You cite several cases in your letter - Mss v. State,
Taylor v. District Court, 4th Judicial District,

Stadler v. State. | took the tine to read those cases
and | found that they are all about crimnal contenpt
comng from a court and |’m curious about why you

chose that as an analogy given that we are the
| egi sl ature and not a court. Can you conmment on that?

MR. ROSS repli ed:

Yes, you found those people in contenpt and it was
nore of a crimnal contenpt than a civil contenpt. A
civil contenpt is a contenpt that you inpose in an
effort to coerce people to do sonething. And they can
purge themselves from contenpt by doing what you
direct themto do. A crimnal contenpt is the contenpt
in which you seek to punish them for sonething they
did in the past. They don’t have any nethod of purging
t henmsel ves from that crimnal contenpt. So it’s quite
clear that your finding — you weren't attenpting to
coerce them to do something. You were attenpting to
puni sh them even if it be a punishment of just being
found to be in contenpt of the |legislature. The
crimnal aspects just seenmed a |lot nore appropriate
than any civil contenpt.

CHAIR FRENCH clarified that his question was not about the |egal
technicalities of whether it was civil or crimnal. He said ny
guestion was why you chose to anal ogi ze Senate powers to a court
because the analogy is nore appropriate to the powers of
Congr ess. “W're a legislative body. You understand the
di fference of course and |’ m asking why you didn't | ook up cases
relating to Congress’s power of contenpt.”

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- April 13, 2009



MR. ROSS responded, “lI represented an individual - a state
enpl oyee who shoul d have never been involved in a battle..

CHAIR FRENCH asked M. Ross to answer the question about
Congress’s power of contenpt.

MR. ROSS responded:
If you're not interested in ny answer that’'s fine. If

you want ny answer |’'|l give it. But your question was
why did | look up certain cases and not | ook up other
cases. | was prepared to answer that question if you
have an interest in hearing it. If you don't, that’s
fine.

CHAI R FRENCH asked M. Ross to proceed.

MR. ROSS conti nued:

One of the reasons | did that was because |
represented a state enployee who found herself in a
battle between ... the executive and the |legislative

branches of governnent. State enployees should be
allowed to do their job. They shouldn’t be caught up
in battles — the power battles between one branch of
government and another. And this enployee did not get
decent legal advice fromthe state in my opinion, and
found herself caught in the mddle. | could have spent
many hours running up attorney’'s fees bill, but it was
sinple to cite the cases | did to show that the
procedures used by the legislature to find these
people in contenpt were inproper. | could have cited a
ot nore — run up nore bills, but it’s not fair to put
that enpl oyee to even greater expense that she was.

1:55:42 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if he believes the legislature has
the authority to subpoenas witnesses to testify before it.

MR. RCSS said yes.
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if he believes that the Senate or
House has the ability to hold a witness in contenpt if they

don’t appear in response to a subpoena.

MR. RCSS said yes.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -9- April 13, 2009



SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked if he advised the witness in this
particul ar case not to adhere to the subpoena.

MR. ROSS replied that falls under attorney client privilege.
SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked who paid his legal fees in this case.
MR. ROSS replied it was the enpl oyee.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked if it was lvy Frye.

MR. ROSS answered yes.

1:56: 23 PM

CHAIR FRENCH said the third paragraph of your letter references
a nmenorandum from the attorney general, which indicated that a
| egal issue existed as to the validity of the subpoenas. He
asked M. Ross if he had seen a copy of that nenorandum

MR. ROSS replied he recalls he did see a copy.

CHAI R FRENCH asked, “Are you aware that your letter was the
first public indication that | had that there was such a
menor andun?”

MR. ROSS replied, “No; |I'm surprised you didn't see it. | saw
it. Youre on the inside; you should have seen it. It was kind
of a less than clear nmenorandum”

1:57: 05 PM
CHAIR FRENCH said, “In the nenorandum the attorney general
offered an opinion about the legality of the subpoenas.” He

asked if that is correct.

MR. ROSS replied that’s his recollection, but it’'s been a while
since he looked at it. “I don't know that it was a real strong
opi nion,” he added.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if he agreed with the opinion.

MR. ROSS repli ed:
| thought it was not nuch of an opinion. The whole
thing was handled very badly Senator. It was handl ed
badly by the legislature; it was handled badly by the
governor’s office. Had | been the attorney general we
could have resolved this thing a lot sooner in ny

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- April 13, 2009



opi nion, and without the state enployees being caught
in the mddle.

CHAIR FRENCH asked M. Ross to give a yes or no answer as to
whet her the subpoenas were | egal.

MR. ROSS repli ed:

At the time | wasn't sure. It’s ny understandi ng that
the courts have indicated that they probably were. But
| would not have probably even gotten to that issue.
think that issue was really irrelevant. It just seens
a shane that the parties couldn’'t have worked together
towards resolving a matter rather than getting
involved in litigation between branches.

CHAI R FRENCH sai d:

M. Ross, | have very specific and clear nenories of
that and very specific and clear nenories of overture
after overture to resolve this, and having been
rebuffed over and over by the individuals and issue

So if you're suggesting that other individuals could
have handled thenselves better, | conpletely agree
with you.

1:58:46 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked M. Ross if he would agree that wth
regard to the power of the legislature to i ssue subpoenas, it is
a clearer issue if the subpoena is to conpel sonebody to cone
before a commttee to testify.

MR. ROSS said he didn't understand the question.

SENATOR THERRI AULT restated that the subpoenas were for people
to make thenselves available to an investigator that the
| egi sl ature had hired.

CHAIR FRENCH called a point of order in the question. "That's
not true," he said. As a nmatter of keeping the record clear, the
subpoenas comanded the attendance of a wtness before the
conmittee, Senator French said. The individuals could have
conplied with the subpoena by neeting with M. Branchflower, so
there was an avenue out of appearing in front of the commttee.
The conmittee has no other |egal authority, he said.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he agrees, but it was a strange issue
He conti nued:

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- April 13, 2009



State enployees previously had been given the option
to talk to the investigator and that would satisfy the
subpoenas. And sone - other than your client — state
enpl oyees were wunclear, and so were their private
attorneys, on just exactly what they were being asked
to do and what their legal rights as individuals would
be if, in fact, they conplied. I know I talked to a
separate state enployee that was unsure of what his
rights would be wth regard to if he answered
guestions of the investigator. Wuld they be public?

It’s my understanding that certainly in the crimna

side, there is a lengthy set of rules that tell a
person that if they respond to a subpoena or when they
respond to a subpoena - how they're going to be
treated, what's going to happen to the information, is
it confidential, is it on the Internet that afternoon

And it would seem to ne like there was a lot of
uncertainty. I'’m wondering if you discussed that with
your client - wthout wviolating attorney client
confidentiality — whether sone of that entered into

your thought process and the advice that you gave to
your client.

2:01:16 PM
MR. ROSS said he told his client it was a goat rope as to who
had | egal responsibility and who didn’t and who had authority
and who didn’t. She should not have been put in that position
and had he been attorney general that woul dn't have happened. He
conti nued:
| would have done ny very best to see to it that the
| egislature wasn’t put in the position where their
rights were challenged. | would have done ny best to
see to it that the state enployees were not put in the
position where they were caught in the mddle. It was
handl ed very badly by a nunber of sides and that's all
|"mgoing to say. |I'’mnot going to plow old ground and
criticize ny predecessor.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said a previous attorney general holds the
same opinion. The entire matter should have been handled so as
to turn down the volunme and get to the truth rather than the way
it played out.

2:02: 29 PM

CHAI R FRENCH recognized Senator Linda Menard had joined the
conmittee.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- April 13, 2009



CHAI R FRENCH asked M. Ross if he would |like to comment on sone
of the statenents that have been made and emails that have been
sent regarding his attitude towards wonen

MR. ROSS said no; he's enjoyed the confirmation process. He

conti nued:
Wnston Churchill said ‘Nothing’s nore exhilarating
than to get shot at and mssed.” But there was a
letter fromthe lady nanmed Burton that really nade ne
angry. | sent the legislature a letter that outlines
my position on wonen. It’s old fashioned. MW father
told me that there is no greater honor that a nman
could have than if a dad lets that man take his
daughter out on a date. And there’s no greater harm
that you can do than to breach the trust that that
dad’s put in you when you take his daughter out.

Wnen are very special to nme. The comments nade by Ms.
Burton were outrageous and they were nothing but lies

— if in fact she wote that letter. | don't know if
she did. | don't know who she is. The letter was
unsigned. 1’ve been nmarried to the sane wonderful
woman for alnost 41 years. If | ever raised any of
t hose kinds of coments to ny wife, there'd be Hell to
pay because she wouldn't put up with it. ...1 open the

doors for wonen, | tip ny hat to them | stand up when
they conme in the roomand if that makes ne a di nosaur
so be it. But that’s the way | treat wonmen and not the
way that letter inplies. Coorments |ike that — had they
been made to nme would have stirred my wath and to
allege that | made such coments really stirs ny
wr at h.

2:05:52 PM
CHAIR FRENCH said | thought it was inportant to give you an
opportunity to respond.

MR. RCSS said, “Thank you; | appreciate that very nuch.”

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked, “If an attorney general candidate
had made comments |like Ms. Burton is alleging, do you believe
that would disqualify that person from sitting as attorney
general .”

VR. RCSS replied it woul d raise a guesti on about
appropri at eness.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- April 13, 2009



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said, “So if it were to cone out that those
statenents were true, then do you believe that that would
di squalify you from bei ng attorney general ?”

MR. RGCSS replied,

Those statenents were nade allegedly in 1991. ...l ran
for governor in 1998; | ran for governor in 2002. Such
statenents certainly should have raised questions as
to whether or not a person should be governor. They
were never nentioned by M. Burton. They only were
rai sed now when Governor Palin put nmy nane forward and
it appears, fromwhat |’ve read in the paper at |east,
that M. Burton has sone disagreenents wth the
governor not with me. And so | think you have to ask
yoursel f why soneone would cone out from the shadows
and attack sonebody through lies. And those are lies.

2:07:30 PM

CHAIR FRENCH clarified that all the emails his office received
are unsigned. That includes enails in support and in opposition
to the appointnment. This is not uncommon, he said.

MR. ROSS responded, “That’s why | didn't accuse M. Burton of
lying because | don't know if she signed it or sonebody else
sent an emai|l over her statement. But if she went and signed it,
"1l call her a liar.”

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked Senator French if he or his staff had
been in touch with Ms. Burton to find out about the statenent.
The email says that Ms. Burton was outside the neeting room and
she was listening in. He said he was struck by the fact that she
has quotation marks around the statenent that M. Ross nade.

MR, RCSS said, “I didn't nake that statement.”

SENATOR THERRI AULT responded but the suggestion is that you did.
He said he wonders if Ms. Burton jotted herself a note or if she
is paraphrasing. That particular statenent has gotten a life of
its own and he’d like to know how she can be so certain.

CHAI R FRENCH said he has had no contact with Ms. Burton and the
guestion he was asking M. Ross was intended to be nore gl oba
with respect to his view on wonen. He noted that although he
isn't interested in getting into any particular allegation, M.
Burton isn't the only wonan who has witten his office
expressing the view that M. Ross has a bad or unusual attitude

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- April 13, 2009



toward wonen. “That’'s why | wanted to give M. Ross the
opportunity to respond. And | think what he said today is that
he’s protective of wonen -- chivalrous even, and old fashioned,”
Senat or French sai d.

MR. ROSS said that’s a good summary.
2:10: 36 PM
CHAIR FRENCH asked M. Ross if he thinks it’s acceptable

behavi or to dunp buckets of water on wonen.

MR. ROSS responded it’s absolutely not okay to dunp buckets of
wat er on protesters.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if he represented M. Wbster on a charge
akin to dunpi ng water on wonen.

MR. ROSS said he did represent M. Wbster.
CHAI R FRENCH asked if he represented M. Wbster for free.

MR. ROSS replied he didn't intend to do it for free, but it
ended up that way.

CHAIR FRENCH noted that the newspaper said he volunteered to
represent M. Wbster and asked if that’s inaccurate.

MR, RCSS replied, “No, that’s correct.”

CHAI R FRENCH said, “So you walked into it thinking you weren’'t
going to get nmuch out of it in the way of reconpense.”

MR. ROSS sai d yes.

2:11: 51 PM
CHAI R FRENCH sai d, “You believed that he needed a defense.”

MR. ROSS sai d yes.
CHAIR FRENCH told M. Ross that he would recite the facts of the
case as reported in the newspaper after which M. Ross could

comrent .

MR. ROSS responded that he could tell the commttee what the
facts of the case were.

CHAI R FRENCH sai d t hanks, but he d prefer to recite the facts.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 15- April 13, 2009



MR. ROCSS said, “lI was there though.”

CHAI R FRENCH responded, “You weren't there when the assault

happened.”

MR, ROCSS said, “I saw the novie.”

CHAIR FRENCH clarified that he’d ask the question and M. Ross

woul d have an opportunity to respond. He read the foll ow ng:
During the buildup to the war in Mirch of 2003 a
handful of war protestors stood at the Soldotna Y
intersection holding a variety of signs..including

peace signs, a US. flag, and sonetines they

had

pictures of U S. servicenen and wonen. The protestors
i ncluded pacifists, Quakers, a local doctor, and an

Air Force wife.

M. Wbster |ived about seven-tenths of a mle away
and frequently drove through that intersection. Around
March 22 he drove past the protestors and threatened
to douse them Two days later on March 24 he threw
water on two wonen holding signs at the Y. Both wonen
were soaked and the signs becane unreadabl e. Soldotna

police, contacted by the denonstrators, warned

M .

Webster not to do it again. The protestors declined to

press charges saying they knew that M. Wbster
under stress.

was

M. Wbster returned a week later and was verbally
confrontational with the two wonen and nore physica
with one of the nmen present, a man named Dani el Funk,
and threatened to beat M. Funk up. Then, in the fina
confrontation M. Wbster returned a day or two |ater
riding in the bed of a truck and dunps two buckets of

water on the protestors. The assault is videotaped
M. Wbster distributes that videotaped assault.
video was set to nusic and as the water showers

sign hol ders, soneone is singing “God Bless the USA

2:13:42 PM
CHAI R FRENCH asked if the foregoing facts are accurate.

MR. ROSS replied they sound fairly accurate.

and
The
t he

CHAIR FRENCH asked M. Ross to tell the conmttee why he felt

conpel led to represent M. Wbster

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -16- Apri

13, 2009



MR. ROSS expl ai ned:

M. Wbster was the father of a Mirine who was
fighting in — if | recall —lraq. | was the father of
a Marine that was fighting in Ilrag and | felt that
while I did not agree with M. Wbster’'s actions, |
felt | could understand his reasons for them and that
he was entitled to a defense and why not a defense
from anot her Marine' s father.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if he’'s saying he did not agree with M.
Webster’s acti ons.

MR. ROSS replied, “1I did not agree with his actions, no.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if his statenents to the press to the
contrary were sinply that he was acting as M. Wbster’'s | awer.

MR. ROSS said, “Yes sir.” He added that the agreenent was that
M. Webster would pay expenses, but that didn’t happen. “I think
he stiffed me for about $800,” he sai d.

CHAIR FRENCH noted that then Attorney General Renkes said,
“W're fighting the war to protect the freedons we have here in
this country. People don’t have the right to harass people
expressing their opinions lawfully.” Senator French asked M.
Ross if he would have issued that statenment had he been attorney
general at the tine.

MR. ROSS replied, “Not if | was M. Webster’'s attorney.”
CHAI R FRENCH r epeat ed t he questi on.
MR. RCSS replied, “Probably not.”

CHAI R FRENCH asked if he would have pressed charges had he been
attorney general at the tine.

MR. ROSS said yes. The police treated M. Wbster fairly in that
they sinply had a chat with him the first time. “M. Wbster
didn’t benefit from the chat the police had so the police had,
in ny opinion, no alternative but to prosecute,” he said.

2:16: 07 PM

CHAI R FRENCH asked if he agrees that the protesters declined to
press charges.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- April 13, 2009



MR. ROSS answered yes.

CHAI R FRENCH sai d, “They turned the other cheek.”

MR. ROCSS replied, “The first tine.”

CHAI R FRENCH asked how many tinmes you should turn your cheek

MR, RCSS replied, “I don’t think that’s the prerogative of the
attorney general to answer that question.”

2:16: 36 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said you stated that M. Wbster was
har assed.

MR. ROSS responded that's correct; M. Wbster had encountered
the protesters in downtown Kenai and he objected to their signs.
The protestors then noved away from downtown and rel ocated at an
intersection that M. Wbster passed every day. “There was sone
indication that the signs indicated that Marines were killing
i nnocent wonen and children. It was arguable then that perhaps
that they were targeting M. Wbster after he had protested what
they were doing initially,” he said.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noted that M. Ross has stressed adherence
to the constitution and asked if he as attorney general would
file harassnment charges against protesters that he disagreed
with.

MR ROSS said no; it’s his opinion that the protesters were
cruel, but they were entitled to do what they did. “M. Wbster
reacted and what he did he was not legally entitled to do. So
there’s a difference between using good judgnent and being cruel
and violating the law,” he said.

2:18: 24 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT said ny personal view is that M. Wbster’'s
behavi or was abhorrent. He could and should have taken a
different action. Having taken the action that he did, | think
it’s your opinion that M. Wbster needed |egal representation
in the system He asked if that's correct.

VR. ROSS repli ed, “He needed | egal representation and
surprisingly even though he had videotaped the whole thing |
beat two out of five charges, which | thought was kind of a

mracle and pretty good job.”

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- April 13, 2009



SENATOR THERRI AULT r el at ed:
|’ m hard pressed sonetinmes in our budgeting process to
appropriate noney to the Public Defender’'s Ofice to
defend rapists [and] child nolesters, but in our
system everybody has to have representation so | guess
| don't fault you for offering that representation.
And I'"’m glad to hear you say that if you had been the
attorney general and if you had reviewed that fact
pattern, you would have been okay with pressing the

charges. That he crossed the line. He was then in
violation of their constitutional rights. |Is that
correct?

2:19:57 PM

MR. ROSS responded he woul dn’t have been okay, but he woul d have
prosecuted. M. Wbster was warned the first tinme and the police
didn’t have to do that. Wen he was prosecuted the next tinme he
had a right to a defense. “If Marine Corps dads can't stick
together at least to make the system work there’'s sonething
wrong,” M. Ross added.

CHAIR FRENCH said M. Ross you say you did a good job for M.
Webster and hel ped him beat two of the charges.

MR. ROSS added that it was two of five charges.
CHAI R FRENCH poi nted out that the July 9, 2003 ADN reported that

until M. Wbster linked up with M. Ross he was going to plead
guilty to a harassnent charge. Had he pled guilty to harassnent

he would have faced a maximum 90 days in jail, but he was
convicted of charges that had him facing 18 nonths jail tine.
“So | guess | disagree with your analysis of the efficacy of

your representation,” Senator French said.

MR. ROSS responded, “He didn't spend any time in jail and |
don’t know of any plea offer that was given him that he didn’t
take. And he was charged with violating the civil rights of the
protestors so I think he was satisfied.” He added that the judge
in the case was subsequently renoved.

CHAI R FRENCH asked why he brings that up
MR. ROCSS replied, “Because | thought | did a pretty good job in

view of the fact that the judge was later found to be pretty
close to in cahoots with the prosecutors.”

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -19- April 13, 2009



CHAIR FRENCH asked if he is suggesting that the rulings the
j udge made agai nst hi m were unet hi cal

MR. ROCSS replied, “Inproper.”
CHAI R FRENCH asked if he filed an appeal.

MR. ROSS said no; he thought he and his client were satisfied
w th what took place.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if it’s true that he does not stand
up when judges enter the room

MR, ROSS replied, “That’s absolute fal sehood. |I'’m one of the few
guys that does nowa-days and ...if I'’m going to be seated during
cross examnation | always ask the court if | have perm ssion to
be seated.”

SENATOR W ELECHOAEKI rel ated that he read that in the “Bar Rag.”
MR. ROSS replied he’s read that too and it’s poetic |icense.
2:23:24 PM

CHAI R FRENCH asked M. Ross which day he was hired as attorney
general by the governor.

MR. ROSS replied he started March 31.

CHAIR FRENCH asked M. Ross if he's aware of the recent effort
to seat a senator for the Juneau D strict B seat.

MR. ROSS asked if he’s tal king about the one the governor’s been
i nvol ved in.

CHAI R FRENCH sai d yes.
MR. ROSS said he’s read the paper and is aware of the effort.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if he's had a role in the legal aspects of
t hat vacancy.

MR. ROCSS responded:

| think | read the paper and |I think | |ooked at the
‘87 opinion and | may have talked to one of the
attorneys that’s handling it, but | haven't had really
much time to do anything of a legal nature. |’ve been

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 20- April 13, 2009



doing a dancing bear act in this building for two
weeks.

CHAI R FRENCH hi ghlighted that soneone advised the governor that
there was a legal basis for asking the 19 remaining senators
vote to seat the appointee. He asked M. Ross if he had a role
i n devel oping that |egal opinion.

MR. ROSS replied he did not have a role, but he agrees with it.
“I think it should be open and above board.”

CHAIR FRENCH said his question is whether the 19 remaining
Senators all should vote.

MR. ROSS said no; the law indicates that the nenbers of the sane
party as the predecessor should vote on the repl acenent.

2:25:22 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked who would vote to confirm the
governor’s nomnation if the Senate had only one Denocrat and
that person resigned to take a different job.

MR. ROSS answered it would probably be the nmenbers of the sane
party

SENATOR THERRI AULT said there would be no Denocrat |eft and that
points out the problenms with the existing statutes.

MR. ROSS said there appear to have been sone conflicts in past
processes.

2:26: 36 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said when you ran for governor you issued a
position paper saying you wanted to cut the pernmanent fund
di vi dend and use the noney for governnment spendi ng.

MR. ROSS responded that is not correct.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI pointed out that, “You said reducing our
permanent fund dividend is a difficult decision for all of us.
This position paper says this is the personal conmtnent all
Al askans nmust now nmake to restore our state prosperity.”

MR. ROSS clarified that he adhered to the Crenp Plan, which
called for putting all state revenue into a super permanent
fund. A certain anount would be allocated for state expenditures
and for a dividend so that you would know each year how nuch

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -21- April 13, 2009



noney was available. But too nuch water is under the bridge to
do that now, he said.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if he has the sane position on the
per manent fund today.

MR. ROSS answered these are different tinmes and the state
government is too large. It mght no |onger be economcally
f easi bl e.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI noted that fornmer Attorney GCeneral Renkes
handed down an inportant opinion in 2003. He asked M. Ross if
he recalls the dispute associated with the foll ow ng:

The attorney general determ ned that unrealized gains

or losses frominvestnment of the fund principal should

be accounted for in the principal and that only

realized gains or |osses should becone an elenent to

be accounted for annually in determ ning net inconme of

t he fund.

2:29:41 PM
MR. ROSS responded “I have no idea what you're tal king about.”

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said there is a question as to whether or
not it is constitutional to pay out permanent fund dividends
when the fund didn’'t nake any noney. “At sone point in tinme |
i mgine you' re going to be called on to issue that opinion and
it will inpact whether.Al askans get their dividends or not.”
It’s an inportant issue to all Alaskans and |'m interested if
you have an opi nion, Senator W el echowski said.

MR. ROSS answered, “I don't; and |’m encouraged to hear you say
at sone tinme 1'Il be called upon to give that opinion because to
give that opinion | have to get confirmed so that could be an

i ndi cation of the way you' d vote.”

2:31:12 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI referenced an ADN article from 3/26/03
regarding a dispute over a letter M. Ross had witten and asked
if he recalls the follow ng
In a letter to incunmbent Myor George Wi erch, Ross
told the mayor he woul d not support him because Wierch
refused to help a friend get into the Anchorage Fire
Depart ment .

MR. ROSS answered he doesn’t recall witing the letter, but it’s
possible. He does recall a man not getting into the fire

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -22- April 13, 2009



department and he did have a case of 7 or 8 nen who didn't get
in.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked M. Ross if that is sonething he
woul d have done.

MR. ROSS responded he doesn’t recall that; George Werch is a
friend and fell ow Mari ne.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNBKI asked M. Ross if he believes that Roe v.
Wade shoul d be overturned.

MR. ROSS said, “Yes.”

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if he has plans to file a lawsuit to
overturn Roe v. \Wade.

MR. ROSS “No; been there done that. It’s not nmy job as AG”

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if as attorney general he would
prosecute individuals in a case where an abortion clinic was
bonbed.

MR. ROSS answered, “Absolutely; follow the |aw.”

2:33:28 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI noted that forner Attorney GCeneral Col berg
issued an opinion that he believed that gay partners of public
enpl oyees shoul d receive benefits. Do you agree or disagree with
that opinion and as attorney general would you have issued a
simlar opinion, Senator W el echowski asked.

MR. ROSS answered he would follow the law, that is the attorney
general’s obligation.

2:34: 21 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked M. Ross if he knows about the Real
| D Act.

MR. ROSS replied he’s heard of it.
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI explained that it’s a federal I|aw that
requi res each state to have a national driver’s license and | ast

year Al aska passed a law prohibiting state dollars from being
used to inplenent that federal |aw.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 23- April 13, 2009



MR. RCOSS surmsed that the reason was that it was an unfunded
mandat e.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said that was one argument and asked if he
supports attenpts to inplenent the Real 1D Act here in Al aska.

MR. ROSS responded he does not have a position on that issue.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSBKI asked if he has a position on right-to-work
| egi sl ati on.

MR. ROSS responded, “lI have no position of right-to-work
legislation; |1 do believe people should not be forced to do
things that they don't want to do.”

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if as attorney general he would
at t enpt to I npl ement any | aws to enact right-to-work
| egi sl ation.

MR. ROSS responded he does not view that as the attorney
general’s job.

2: 35: 50 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked whose job it is to direct Departnent of
Law resources on a high profile issue such as that.

MR ROSS replied, “I would think the |legislature or the
governor. O course it wuld be ny job if we were on the
receiving end of some litigation, but to go out tilting at

windmlls just to find battles to get involved in, that’s not ny
job.”

SENATOR THERRI AULT commented that the questions asked what he
intends to do as attorney general and it seens that on a |ot of
those issues he would take whatever position the governor
directs himto take.

MR. ROSS responded he would give advice to the legislature and
the governor, but it would be a governor’'s or legislature's
deci si on.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said a lot of people junp to the concl usion
that the attorney general is the one who will file charges and
argue all the court cases, but it’s his assunption that the
attorney general doesn’'t do that. Rather, he said he |ooks at
the attorney general as the manager of the state’'s law firm He

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 24- April 13, 2009



asked M. Ross the degree to which he might interject hinself
into daily litigation.

2:37:48 PM

MR. ROSS responded he’'s just beginning to see how the departnent
wor ks, but he ascribes to Teddy Roosevelt’s philosophy. That is
that a good executive hires the best people possible and then
stands back and allows them to do their job. Thus far it |ooks
like the Departnment of Law is a well-oiled nmachine. He
conti nued:

| see the greater oil that’'s needed to nake the
machi nery work better to be in the crimnal justice
section than in the civil section. .. The crimnal
section seens to be working well except that | am
aware of problens in the district attorney’s office in
Anchorage and 1’'ve heard runors of problens in
Fai r banks. So | intend to wvisit all of those

departnments and talk to the individual people and see
what we can do to inprove the system But the biggest
difficulty in the job is | love to go to court and |
probably won't be going to court too much anynore.

2:39:56 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT said so you aren’t comng to this appointnent
with the preconceived notion that you are going to restructure
t he Departnent of Law.

MR. ROSS responded that’s correct.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked M. Ross if he has deci ded where his
office will be based.

MR. ROSS replied it wll be in Anchorage and he wll make
frequent trips to Juneau, particularly during the |egislative
sessi on.

2:40: 38 PM
CHAI R FRENCH thanked M. Ross for his patience and asked for a
notion to forward his nane.

At ease from 2:40:55 PMto 2:41:16 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT noved to forward the nane Wayne Anthony Ross
to the full legislature for consideration and stated that the
vote in conmmttee is not an indication of how any nenber intends
to vote on the confirmation.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -25- April 13, 2009



CHAIR FRENCH found no objection and announced that the nane
Wayne Anthony Ross will be forwarded to a session of the joint
body for a confirmation vote in the near future.

At ease 2:41:53 PM

SB_54- PRI CE GOUG NG | NVOLVI NG ENERGY RESOURCES

2:46: 02 PM

CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of the CS for SB 54

[Before the commttee was CSSB 54(RES).] He recapped that the
committee recently received an overview of the bill and had a
debate on its plusses and m nuses. In response to the discussion
and working with Senator Wel echowski’s office, an anmendnent has
been drafted.

CHAI R FRENCH noved Amendnent 1, | abel ed 26-LS0209\ W 2.

AMENDMENT1

OFFERED | N THE SENATE
TO  CSSB 54( RES)

Page 1, line 2:
Del ete "exorbitant or excessive"
| nsert "unconsci onabl e"

Page 1, lines 11 - 12:
Del ete "exorbitant or excessive"
| nsert "unconsci onabl e"

Page 2, line 25:
Del ete "exorbitant or excessive"
| nsert "unconsci onabl e"

2:46: 44 PM

CHAIR FRENCH found no objection and announced Anmendnment 1 is
adopted. He explained that the anmendnent is in response to
testinmony from Assistant Attorney General Ed Sniffen. He will be
in charge of prosecuting these cases and his view is that the
wor k “unconsci onabl e” is a nore customary term

SENATOR THERRI AULT noved to report SB 54 from committee wth
i ndi vi dual recomrendations and attached fiscal note(s). There
being no objection, CSSB 54(JUD) noved from the Senate Judiciary
St andi ng Comm ttee.

#

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 26- April 13, 2009



2:47: 45 PM
There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
Chair French adjourned the neeting at 2:47 pm

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -27- April 13, 2009



